
ELECTORAL REVIEW WORKING PARTY
AGENDA

Venue: Small Hall, United Reformed Church, James Street, 
Whitehaven. CA28 7HZ 

Date: Wednesday, 1st March, 2017
Time: 10.00 am
Contact Officer: Clive Willoughby Tel: 01946 598328

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 16 December 2016 1 - 4

4. Community Governance Review - Beckermet with Thornhill 5 - 12

5. Community Governance Review - Parton 13 - 20

6. Community Governance Review - Seascale 21 - 32

Membership: Councillors Peter Connolly (Chair), John Burns, Yvonne Clarkson, 
Neil Ferguson, Ian Hill, Bob Kelly and Jean Lewthwaite

Contacts: Direct Dial: 01946 598528
E-mail: denise.james@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



ELECTORAL REVIEW WORKING PARTY

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON FRIDAY, 16 DECEMBER 2016

Present: Councillors Peter Connolly, in the Chair; Yvonne Clarkson, Neil Ferguson, Ian Hill, 
Bob Kelly and Jean Lewthwaite.

Officers: Tim Capper, Community Governance Projects Officer and Clive Willoughby (Member 
Services Technical Support Officer & Interim Scrutiny Officer)

ER11 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor John Burns.

ER12 Declarations of Interest 

There were no Declarations of Interests made.

ER13 Minutes of the Meeting held on 28 October 2016 

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 28 October 2016 be signed by the 
Chair as a correct record.

ER14 Community Governance Review - Egremont 

Members received an update on the first stage of the Community Governance Review of 
Egremont Parish from the Community Governance Projects Officer.

A consultation on the Egremont review ran from 24 October 2016 to 5 December 2016 during 
which time details were placed on the Copeland Borough Council’s website, an article was 
published in the Whitehaven News, a drop-in session was held at Egremont Market Hall and 
letter/email consultation held with Egremont Town and Cumbria County Councillors.

No responses to the consultation were received.  

Following discussion, it was 

RESOLVED – that
a) It be noted that there were no responses to the Egremont review consultation,
b) The initial proposals as set out in para 4 of the agenda report be confirmed as the final 

proposals for publication,
c) The draft Community Reorganisation Order be forwarded to the 4 April 2017 meeting 

of Council for approval. 

ER15 Community Governance Review - Beckermet with Thornhill 

The Community Governance Projects Officer introduced a report to Members for a review of 
the number of Councillors on the Beckermet with Thornhill Parish Council. The proposal being 
to reduce the number of Councillors from 14 to 12. 

The Terms of Reference, initial proposals for the review and arrangements for consultation 
were then discussed, with the proposed consultation period be 
19 December 2016 to 6 February 2017.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



During the discussion that followed, Members suggested that a proposed drop-in session in 
the parish should not take place and requested the Community Governance Projects Officer 
liaise with the Parish Clerk to ensure the parish has no objection to this suggestion.

RESOLVED – that
a) the Terms of Reference for the Beckermet with Thornhill Parish Council Review as set 

out in Appendix A of the report be agreed,
b) the Initial Proposals as set out in Appendix B of the report be agreed, and
c) the Consultation Proposals and the Consultation Period as set out in Paragraph 4 of 

the report be agreed.

ER16 Community Governance Review - Parton 

The Community Governance Projects Officer introduced a report to Members for a review of 
the number of Councillors on the Parton Parish Council. 
The proposal being to reduce the number of Councillors from 13 to 11. 

The Terms of Reference, initial proposals for the review and arrangements for consultation 
were then discussed, with the proposed consultation period be 
19 December 2016 to 6 February 2017.

During the discussion that followed, Members suggested that a proposed drop-in session in 
the parish should not take place and requested the Community Governance Projects Officer 
liaise with the Parish Clerk to ensure the parish has no objection to this suggestion.

RESOLVED – that
a) the Terms of Reference for the Parton Parish Council Review as set out in Appendix A 

of the report be agreed,
b) the Initial Proposals as set out in Appendix B of the report be agreed, and
c) the Consultation Proposals and the Consultation Period as set out in Paragraph 4 of 

the report be agreed.

ER17 Community Governance Review - Seascale 

The Community Governance Projects Officer introduced a report to Members for a review of 
the number of Councillors on the Seascale Parish Council. The proposal being to reduce the 
number of Councillors from 12 to 8. 

The Terms of Reference, initial proposals for the review and arrangements for consultation 
were then discussed, with the proposed consultation period be 
19 December 2016 to 6 February 2017.

During the discussion that followed, Members suggested that a proposed drop-in session in 
the parish should not take place and requested the Community Governance Projects Officer 
liaise with the Parish Clerk to ensure the parish has no objection to this suggestion.

RESOLVED – that
a) the Terms of Reference for the Seascale Parish Council Review as set out in Appendix 

A of the report be agreed,
b) the Initial Proposals as set out in Appendix B of the report be agreed, and
c) the Consultation Proposals and the Consultation Period as set out in Paragraph 4 of 

the report be agreed.

Page 2



ER18 Date and Time of Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the Electoral Review Working Party will be held on Wednesday 
22 February 2017 at 10.00pm, venue to be advised.

The Meeting closed at 10.25 am 

Chair

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW – BECKERMET WITH THORNHILL

EXECUTIVE MEMBER Councillor David Moore

LEAD OFFICER Julie Betteridge, Director of Customer and Community Services

REPORT AUTHOR Tim Capper, Community Governance Projects Officer

Why has this report come to the Panel?

To report the results of consultation the first stage of the Community Governance Review of 
Beckermet with Thornhill Parish; to obtain agreement to the initial proposals as the final 
proposals for publication; and to agree the draft Community Reorganisation Order for final 
approval by Council on 4 April 2017. 

Recommendation – that the Electoral Review Working Party:

(a) Notes that there have been no responses received as a result of the consultation;
(b) Confirms the Initial Proposals as set out in paragraph 4 as the final proposals for 

publication;
(c) Agrees the draft Community Reorganisation Order set out at Appendix “A” for 

approval by Council on 4 April 2017.

1 Introduction

1.1 The Working Party on 3 October agreed the Terms of Reference and Initial Proposals 
for the Community Governance Review of Beckermet with Thornhill Parish, under the 
provisions of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (the 2007 Act). 
The initial proposals were for a reduction in the number of Councillors on the Parish Council 
from fourteen to twelve.

2 Consultation

2.1 The 2007 Act requires a principal council undertaking a review to consult local 
government electors in the area under review, together with any other individuals or 
organisations considered to have an interest in the Review. The parish council concerned and 
the County Council are statutory consultees.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



2.2 The method of consultation is not prescribed. The consultation on the Beckermet with 
Thornhill Review started on 19 December and closed on 6 February. Consultation has taken 
the following forms:

 Terms of Reference and Initial Proposals have been placed on the front page 
of both the Council’s website and the Parish Council’s website throughout the 
consultation period;

 Editorial coverage in the Whitehaven News during the consultation period, 
which gave details of how electors could respond to the consultation. 

 Individual consultation by letter or e-mail with the statutory consultees, the 
parish council Cumbria County Council.

3 Consultation Responses

3.1 The Council has received no responses to the consultation, from either of the statutory 
consultees, Beckermet with Thornhill Parish Council and Cumbria County Council, or from any 
individual electors or organisations.

3.2 The lack of responses to the consultation is in some ways disappointing, but it is also 
understandable and predictable – neither the Parish Council nor any electors are affected 
financially by the proposed changes, either beneficially or disadvantageously; and the 
proposed changes will not in any event come into effect for more than two years. The 
important point to note here is that the legislation requires the Council to follow due process 
in conducting a review, and we have done so, including giving electors adequate opportunity 
to respond to the consultation if they wish. The fact that they have chosen not to is 
immaterial.

4 Final Proposals

4.1 As the Council has received no comments on our initial proposals our initial proposals 
can be confirmed as the final recommendations. These will be to reduce the number of 
Councillors on Beckermet with Thornhill Parish Council from fourteen to twelve, with effect 
from the 2019 parish council elections

4.2 The final recommendations will need to be published. Publication will mark the 
conclusion of the formal review process.

4.3 The final proposals and the consequential Community Reorganisation Order will need 
approval by full Council. The draft Order is attached as Appendix “A” and the associated map 
at Appendix “B”. It is intended that the draft Order will be submitted to Council on 4 April 
2017, along with the draft Orders which may arise from the other three Community 
Governance Reviews for Egremont, Seascale and Parton parishes. 

Page 6



5 Conclusion

5.1 The proposals in this report will enable the Working Party to successfully conclude the 
Community Governance Review of Beckermet with Thornhill parish, with the exception of the 
approval of the Community Reorganisation Order by Council. 

Consultees – Lead Executive Member; Managing Director; Director; S151 Officer; Monitoring 
Officer

Appendix “A” –  Draft Community Reorganisation Order

Appendix “B” - Plan

Page 7



Page 8



DRAFT

COPELAND BOROUGH COUNCIL (Beckermet with Thornhill)

COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REORGANISATION ORDER 2017

The Copeland Borough Council, in exercise of the powers contained in Section 86 of 
the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, hereby makes the 
following order:

(1) This Order may be cited as the Copeland Borough Council (Beckermet with 
Thornhill) Community Governance Reorganisation Order 2017.

(2) This Order shall come into force on 1 April 2019.

(3) By virtue of the Order the number of Councillors to be elected to the Beckermet 
with Thornhill Parish Council shall be decreased from fourteen Councillors to 
twelve Councillors

Dated this _____ day of _____2017

Clinton Boyce
Legal Services Manager

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW – PARTON

EXECUTIVE MEMBER Councillor David Moore

LEAD OFFICER Julie Betteridge, Director of Customer and Community Services

REPORT AUTHOR Tim Capper, Community Governance Projects Officer

Why has this report come to the Panel?

To report the results of consultation the first stage of the Community Governance Review of 
Parton Parish; to obtain agreement to the initial proposals as the final proposals for 
publication; and to agree the draft Community Reorganisation Order for final approval by 
Council on 4 April 2017. 

Recommendation – that the Electoral Review Working Party:

(a) Notes that there have been no responses received as a result of the consultation;
(b) Confirms the Initial Proposals as set out in paragraph 4 as the final proposals for 

publication;
(c) Agrees the draft Community Reorganisation Order set out at Appendix “A” for 

approval by Council on 4 April 2017.

1 Introduction

1.1 The Working Party on 3 October agreed the Terms of Reference and Initial Proposals 
for the Community Governance Review of Parton Parish, under the provisions of the Local 
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (the 2007 Act). The initial proposals 
were for a reduction in the number of Councillors on the Parish Council from thirteen to 
eleven.

2 Consultation

2.1 The 2007 Act requires a principal council undertaking a review to consult local 
government electors in the area under review, together with any other individuals or 
organisations considered to have an interest in the Review. The parish council concerned and 
the County Council are statutory consultees.

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



2.2 The method of consultation is not prescribed. The consultation on the Parton Review 
started on 19 December and closed on 6 February. Consultation has taken the following 
forms:

 Terms of Reference and Initial Proposals have been placed on the front page 
of both the Council’s website and the Parish Council’s website throughout the 
consultation period;

 Editorial coverage in the Whitehaven News during the consultation period, 
which gave details of how electors could respond to the consultation. 

 Individual consultation by letter or e-mail with the statutory consultees, the 
parish council Cumbria County Council.

3 Consultation Responses

3.1 The Council has received no responses to the consultation, from either of the statutory 
consultees, Parton Parish Council and Cumbria County Council, or from any individual electors 
or organisations.

3.2 The lack of responses to the consultation is in some ways disappointing, but it is also 
understandable and predictable – neither the Parish Council nor any electors are affected 
financially by the proposed changes, either beneficially or disadvantageously; and the 
proposed changes will not in any event come into effect for more than two years. The 
important point to note here is that the legislation requires the Council to follow due process 
in conducting a review, and we have done so, including giving electors adequate opportunity 
to respond to the consultation if they wish. The fact that they have chosen not to is 
immaterial.

4 Final Proposals

4.1 As the Council has received no comments on our initial proposals our initial proposals 
can be confirmed as the final recommendations. These will be to reduce the number of 
Councillors on Parton Parish Council from thirteen to eleven, with effect from the 2019 parish 
council elections.

4.2 The final recommendations will need to be published. Publication will mark the 
conclusion of the formal review process.

4.3 The final proposals and the consequential Community Reorganisation Order will need 
approval by full Council. The draft Order is attached as Appendix “A” and the associated map 
at Appendix “B”. It is intended that the draft Order will be submitted to Council on 4 April 
2017, along with the draft Orders which may arise from the other three Community 
Governance Reviews for Beckermet with Thornhill, Egremont and Seascale parishes. 

Page 14



5 Conclusion

5.1 The proposals in this report will enable the Working Party to successfully conclude the 
Community Governance Review of Parton parish, with the exception of the approval of the 
Community Reorganisation Order by Council. 

Consultees – Lead Executive Member; Managing Director; Director; S151 Officer; Monitoring 
Officer

Appendix “A” –  Draft Community Reorganisation Order

Appendix “B” - Plan

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT

COPELAND BOROUGH COUNCIL (Parton)

COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REORGANISATION ORDER 2017

The Copeland Borough Council, in exercise of the powers contained in Section 86 of 
the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, hereby makes the 
following order:

(1) This Order may be cited as the Copeland Borough Council (Parton) 
Community Governance Reorganisation Order 2017.

(2) This Order shall come into force on 1 April 2019.

(3) By virtue of the Order the number of Councillors to be elected to the Parton 
Parish Council shall be decreased from thirteen Councillors to eleven 
Councillors

Dated this _____ day of _____2017

Clinton Boyce
Legal Services Manager

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW – SEASCALE

EXECUTIVE MEMBER Councillor David Moore

LEAD OFFICER Julie Betteridge, Director of Customer and Community Services

REPORT AUTHOR Tim Capper, Community Governance Projects Officer

Why has this report come to the Panel?

To report the results of consultation on the first stage of the Community Governance Review 
of Seascale Parish; to obtain agreement to adoption of the initial proposals as the final 
proposals for publication; and to agree the draft Community Reorganisation Order for final 
approval by Council on 4 April 2017. 

Recommendation – that the Electoral Review Working Party:

(a) Considers the two representations received from individuals as a result of the 
consultation;

(b) Confirms the Initial Proposals as set out in paragraph 4 as the final proposals for 
publication;

(c) Agrees the draft Community Reorganisation Order set out at Appendix “C” for 
approval by Council on 4 April 2017.

1 Introduction

1.1 The Working Party on 3 October agreed the Terms of Reference and Initial Proposals 
for the Community Governance Review of Seascale Parish, under the provisions of the Local 
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (the 2007 Act). The initial proposals 
were for a reduction in the number of Councillors on the Parish Council from twelve to eight.

2 Consultation

2.1 The 2007 Act requires a principal council undertaking a review to consult local 
government electors in the area under review, together with any other individuals or 
organisations considered to have an interest in the Review. The parish council concerned and 
the County Council are statutory consultees.

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



2.2 The method of consultation is not prescribed. The consultation on the Seascale Review 
started on 19 December and closed on 6 February. Consultation has taken the following 
forms:

 Terms of Reference and Initial Proposals have been placed on the front page 
of both the Council’s website and the Parish Council’s website throughout the 
consultation period;

 Editorial coverage in the Whitehaven News during the consultation period, 
which gave details of how electors could respond to the consultation;

 Individual consultation by letter or e-mail with the statutory consultees, the 
parish council and Cumbria County Council.

3 Consultation Responses

3.1 The Council has received two responses to the consultation, from residents of 
Seascale. These are attached at Appendices “A” and “B”. It should be noted that one of the 
two respondees has agreed to their identity being disclosed in this report under Data 
Protection legislation, whereas the second has not.

3.2 Both respondees have objected to the proposed reduction in the number of 
Councillors in Seascale from eight to twelve. Both make various comments about the 
performance of Seascale Parish Council in providing services in the community.

3.3 The Working Party needs to consider the two responses and decide whether to amend 
the initial proposals for Seascale in the light of the responses. The legislation and statutory 
guidance on community governance reviews requires a principal council undertaking a review 
to ensure that community governance in a review area will be:

 Reflective of the identities and interests of the community in that area; and
 Effective and convenient.

3.4 It would appear that neither of the respondees is offering any cogent arguments on 
why the interests of effective and convenient community governance would be served by a 
parish council of twelve members, as opposed to a parish council of eight members. As 
discussed in earlier meetings of the Panel, the difficulty in retaining a membership of twelve 
would lie in meetings being in frequent danger of becoming inquorate, since a quorum is 
calculated by reference to the total number of seats on the council, not the number of seats 
that are currently filled (eight in the case of Seascale). It would appear therefore that there 
are indeed advantages in terms of effective and convenient community governance of moving 
from a membership of twelve to a membership of eight.   

3.5 For the reasons set out in 3.4 above, it is therefore recommended that no change is made 
to the initial proposals as a result of the responses to the consultation. 

Page 22



4 Final Proposals

4.1 If Members are minded to agree with the recommendation in 3.5 above, our initial 
proposals can be confirmed as the final recommendations. These will be to reduce the 
number of Councillors on Seascale Parish Council from twelve to eight, with effect from the 
2019 parish council elections

4.2 The final recommendations will need to be published. Publication will mark the 
conclusion of the formal review process.

4.3 The final proposals and the consequential Community Reorganisation Order will need 
approval by full Council. The draft Order is attached as Appendix “C” and the associated map 
at Appendix “D”. It is intended that the draft Order will be submitted to Council on 4 April 
2017, along with the draft Orders which may arise from the other three Community 
Governance Reviews for Beckermet with Thornhill, Egremont and Parton parishes. 

5 Conclusion

5.1 The proposals in this report will enable the Working Party to successfully conclude the 
Community Governance Review of Seascale parish, with the exception of the approval of the 
Community Reorganisation Order by Council. 

Consultees – Lead Executive Member; Managing Director; Director; S151 Officer; Monitoring 
Officer

Appendix “A” – Consultation Response

Appendix “B” – Consultation Response

Appendix “C” –  Draft Community Reorganisation Order

Appendix “D” - Plan

Page 23



Page 24



Appendix “A”

SEASCALE PARISH COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW – CONSULTATION RESPONSE 
FROM RESIDENT A

I have been told about this consultation on about reducing the number of Seascale Parish 
Councillors from 12 to 8 members.  This has not come from Seascale Parish council.  
They've not publicised the consultation on their sea front noticeboard. Lots of people are 
down at McColls during the day - perhaps they could use the McColls noticeboard and the 
Co-Op one, and the other shop fronts in the village.

I haven't personally seen any proper consultation with the community on anything.  

My view is that Seascale Parish councillors haven't delivered meaningful benefits. 

The councillors complain that they 'are just volunteers' and haven't got enough people or 
time to do the job they are being asked to do. This is a job they are elected to do - if they 
can't then there is something very wrong.

Are they more interested in having a 'position' and a monthly meeting where they can feel 
important?  

A good example of poor performance is opening and closing times for the public toilets.  I 
am often at the car park on weekday and weekend mornings after 9am, including bank 
holidays, and seen the toilets are still locked.  Last year, a coach load of disabled people 
arrived at Sesacale to enjoy the beach and had no access to the toilets.

Another example is the sea front car park.  Seascale took the car park over from Copeland in 
2015, then signed a lease for what seems half the car park with Sellafield contractors. The 
contractors park where they shouldn't and take up far more than the blue allocated spaces. 
The sea front car park is regularly full apart from 10-15 spaces.  This happens also during all 
school holidays including summer holidays.  Complaints to the council have made no 
difference. The council says they 'are all volunteers' and haven't got the time or people to 
do any monitoring, or issue the parking permits the cars should have, or order the 
contractors to remove all cars not in blue spaces.  

The councillors have recently said in Tethera Magazine they want to take on and run 
Seascale Library on a voluntary basis.  If you can't manage a car park and public toilets with 
8 people in post, then you aren't going to run a voluntary library service.  

If they can't perform a basic parish role with 8 people, then the reduction to 8 is stupid. 

I think keeping the numbers low means current council members can keep the number of 
new people to a minimum.  Because these new people would want to do things differently 
and that would upset things.

Cont…

Page 25



The parish council should stay at 12 posts and all 12 posts should be up for immediate 
election.

After this, co-opting members onto the council should stop and be replaced with open 
elections for all parish council posts that become vacant.

If you don't get many responses from the public, that's because Seascale Parish Council 
seem to do everything they can to avoid public consultation

Page 26



Appendix “B”

SEASCALE PARISH COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW – CONSULTATION RESPONSE 
FROM MR ROBIN SHARMAN

Dear Tim

I've been told you're the person to speak to about the Seascale Parish Council consultation 
to reduce the number of councillors.

Seascale Parish council in its present form is worse than useless - it acts without 
consultation and takes no notice of the parishioners' wishes or concerns - it does nothing 
other than serve its own selfish purposes. The reason they have vacant posts is that nobody 
wants to be on Seascale Parish council because of the high-handed attitude of people on 
there now. Volunteering to stand would likely be a waste of time unless the volunteer's face 
fitted.

I work away from Seascale during the week and I can tell you that they have totally ruined 
this village by making it an extension of Sellafield's car parking.

If you complain about anything you either get ignored or a given a vacuous comment like 
"note".

The council needs to stay with 12 people.  The current members of the council should be 
sacked and we should appoint a whole new set of people who might actually do some 
good.  Nobody on the current parish council should be eligible to apply.

Yours

Robin Sharman
Seascale resident and business owner

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT

COPELAND BOROUGH COUNCIL (Seascale)

COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REORGANISATION ORDER 2017

The Copeland Borough Council, in exercise of the powers contained in Section 86 of 
the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, hereby makes the 
following order:

(1) This Order may be cited as the Copeland Borough Council (Seascale) 
Community Governance Reorganisation Order 2017.

(2) This Order shall come into force on 1 April 2019.

(3) By virtue of the Order the number of Councillors to be elected to the Seascale 
Parish Council shall be decreased from twelve Councillors to eight Councillors

Dated this _____ day of _____2017

Clinton Boyce
Legal Services Manager

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 16 December 2016
	4 Community Governance Review - Beckermet with Thornhill
	draft Order Beckermet
	BeckermetWithThornhillParish25K

	5 Community Governance Review - Parton
	Draft Order Parton
	PartonParish25K

	6 Community Governance Review - Seascale
	Seascale Post Consultation AppA
	Seascale Post Consultation AppB
	draft order Seascale
	SeascaleParish25K


